Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

Friday, 25 February 2022
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on
Monday, 7 March 2022
beginning at
7:00 pm
in the
Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO:

Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Margaret Allingham
Councillor Ian Corben
Councillor Richard Gomer
Councillor Keith House
Councillor Lucy Jurd
Staff Contacts:

Councillor Rupert Kyrle
Councillor Derek Pretty
Councillor Bruce Tennent
Councillor Tim Bearder
Councillor Dave Kinloch

Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298
Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk. Please email
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak
before the meeting.
Kitty Budden, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8266; Email:
kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk

JOANNE CASSAR
Executive Head of Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website
as well as in other formats.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting,
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed. To register please
contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to
access committee papers.

1

AGENDA
1.
2.

Apologies
Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

3.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2021.

4.

Public Participation

5.

Chair's report

6.

Local Area Manager's Report (Pages 9 - 16)

7.

Presentation on Planning Guidelines

8.

Planning Application - UNIT 3, LANKESTER HOUSE, 1 FREEGROUNDS ROAD,
HEDGE END, SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 0HG (Pages 17 - 26)
Variation of condition 3 (opening hours) of planning permission J/17/80081 for
prior approval for change of use for A1 (retail) to A3 (restaurants and cafes)
(X/21/92160)

9.
10.

Community Grants (Pages 27 - 36)
Planning Appeals
The Legal Services Manager to report:(a)

that the following appeals have been lodged:Hedge End Retail Park, Tollbar Way, Hedge End, SO30 2UH
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to carry out works to protected trees.
(T/20/89128)
Land to the rear of Sovereign Drive and Precosa Road, Botley
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for residential development
comprising 106 no. dwellings, new access from Sovereign Drive,
associated landscaping and drainage works following demolition of no. 47
Sovereign Drive and Hatts Copse House (net 104 no. dwellings)
(F/20/87625)

(b)

that the following appeals have been dismissed:11 Eden Road, West End, Southampton, SO18 3QW

2

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to
a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). (T/20/88029)
Land adjacent to 38 Oak Vale, West End. SO30 3SF
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to
undertake work to a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).
(T/20/88839)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 13 June 2022 at 7:00 pm
In the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus
lots more.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
1
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 1 November 2021 (7:00 pm – 7:50 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Corben, Gomer, House,
Jurd, Pretty, Tennent and Kinloch
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allingham, Kyrle
and Bearder
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
121.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on
the agenda.

122.

MINUTES
RESOLVED That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2021 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

123.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Mrs Margaret Billard addressed the Committee with regards to planning
decisions made including safety, noise screening and pollution screening,
on the boundary of the Motorway and busy roads. It was requested that
barriers were put in place.
The Senior Planning Officer gave an overview with regards to planning
rules and the Chair advised that a detailed response would be given in
writing.

124.

CHAIR'S REPORT
Community Grants
The local Community and Youth Grants scheme is currently open,
providing an opportunity for charities and not-for-profit organisations in
Hedge End, West End and Botley to apply to the Local Area Committee for
grants for up to £500 towards one off projects, equipment and individual
events. The deadline for applications is the 15th November and all
applications will be considered by this Committee in January.

5

2

Deer Park Secondary School
The Chair had the pleasure of cutting the ribbon for the official opening of
Deer Park Secondary School in October and received a guided tour by
some of the year 7 pupils. Work is continuing to further enhance these
facilities with the sports hall extension and Artificial Turf Pitch, which will
be available for community use.
Dowds Farm Bench
The Committee recently funded the provision of a new bench at Down’s
Farm Park, on behalf of Hedge End Town Council. This has been installed
and is being enjoyed by local residents.
Shamblehurst Lane Crossing
At the last meeting, the Local Area Manager reported that the completion
of this project had been delayed due to works that had to be undertaken
by the utility company. The Chair reported that the SSE works have now
finished and the final path surfacing works are in the process of being
completed.
125.

LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT
There was no report from the Local Area Manager on this occasion.

126.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda
Item 7) setting out recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s
revenue budget and developer contributions.
RESOLVED –
That this Committee:
(1) approved the stated fees and charges for Itchen Valley Country
Park for 2022; and
(2) approved the freezing of fees and charges at Hedge End
Station car park.

127.

PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES
A Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that had to be
taken into account when determining planning applications; in particular
the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account. This was set
against the broader policy framework.

6

3

128.

PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND TO THE REAR OF 82 ST JOHN'S
ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 4DF
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning
and Economy (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for the erection
of 1no. detached three-bedroom bungalow provided with associated
access, car parking, amenity space and storage facilities (amended
escription). (Ref:F/20/88079).
The Committee was advised that there were no updates.
RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED subject to securing mitigation
towards the development’s impact on the Special Protection Area by
way of nitrates and recreational disturbance, as per the committee
report, and with the amendment to condition 10, as follows:
For a period of no less than 10 years after planting, any trees or
plants which are removed, die or become seriously damaged or
defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with
others of the same species, size and number as originally approved
in the landscaping scheme.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality.
[NOTES: (A) Two members of the public spoke in objection to the
application citing concerns around noise, disturbance and the height
of the property. (B) The Architect spoke in support of the application
citing the high quality design and materials, and no impact to the
surrounding properties in terms of overlooking.]

129.

PLANNING APPEALS
The Legal Services Manager reported:(a) that the following appeals had been dismissed:Land at Oak Cottage, Winchester Road, Boorley Green
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for a
residential development of 31 No dwellings, associated landscaping,
amenity areas and a means of access from Winchester Road following
demolition of 1 no dwelling and associated outbuildings. (F/19/85604)
12 Telegraph Road, West End, Southampton SO30 3EJ

7

4
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for a loft
conversion with a side facing dormer and raising of roof by 1200mm.
(H/21/90193)
RESOLVED That the report be noted.
M6806

8

Agenda Item 6
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 7 March 2022
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA ACTION
PLAN 2022/23
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Committee:
(1)

Note the progress to date on identified projects and priorities during
2021/2022; and

(2)

Approve the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Local Area Action
Plan Priorities 2022/23 shown in Appendix Two for adoption and publication.

Summary
This report provides updates regarding the progress made on priorities identified in the
HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2021/22. It goes on to set out the priorities for next year
for the Local Area Committee. The new Local Area Action Plan for 2022/23 is presented
to the Committee for its approval.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011, i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or
present in its area.

9

Strategic Implications
1.

This report contributes towards a number of the key objectives in the
Corporate Plan 2015-2025 through enhancements to the local environment,
support for health and wellbeing, provision of infrastructure and reinvigoration
of Hedge End Town Centre. It is in line with the Local First approach which
focuses on local need and local priorities and contributes to the achievement
of the Council’s vision set out in the Corporate Plan.

Introduction
2.

The Council has set out its vision for the direction it will take in the coming
years in the Corporate Plan 2015-2025. This vision is:
‘…developing a strong and sustainable economy that supports improved
standards of living for residents; promoting thriving and healthy communities;
and maintaining an attractive and sustainable environment that residents
value.’
It serves as the guiding principle that has informed the development of key
Borough-wide objectives contained within the Corporate Plan to improve the
quality of life for all.

3.

The Council seeks to enable decisions to be made at the most appropriate
local level, most notably through the five Local Area Committees, but also
through our town and parish councils and other local partnerships.

4.

In line with this Local First approach, in 2019 this Committee approved a
Community Investment Programme (CIP) for 2019-2024 which prioritises local
projects and initiatives. The CIP is developed in conjunction with Hedge End
Town Council and West End and Botley Parish Councils. It is used to
negotiate Section 106 legal agreement contributions from developers which
frequently form the majority of the funds required to deliver the project. This
rolling programme is in the process of being updated for 2021-2026 and will
be considered for approval by the Committee in due course.

5.

The CIP and Corporate Plan inform discussions around the key priorities for
HEWEB for the coming year, which form part of the Local Area Action Plan
(LAAP). This LAAP is used to inform budgets and resources as part of the
Council’s annual business planning cycle; and provides a written statement of
the Committee’s priorities for that year. It highlights the key local partnerships
within the local area as well as outlining the roles of the Committee and the
Local Area Manager.

Progress in 2021
6.

10

A summary review of progress on this Committee’s current LAAP for 2021-22
is contained within Appendix One of this report. Whilst the effects of the
Covid restrictions continue to be evident for some projects, there has been
encouraging progress in other areas.

Eastleigh Borough Council

7.

The proposed Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Action Plan
Priorities for 2022/23 are based on the review in Appendix One, with ongoing
priorities or the next stage of longer-term projects identified. Two new
projects to enhance community facilities have been added, together with a
priority to seek to influence the provision of local health care.

8.

Local Councillors have been consulted on this updated Plan and it is now
recommended that the HEWEB Local Area Action Plan Priorities 2022/23 are
approved for adoption and publication as shown in Appendix Two.

Financial Implications
9.

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations.
A number of projects identified are also corporate priorities with funding and
resourcing already considered corporately, eg. Itchen Valley Country Park and
the former Budgens site. Berrywood Fields is a live project and has resources
allocated. Engagement with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is
ongoing and staff resources are already committed. The Telegraph Woods
and New Place projects relate to the scoping of projects rather than project
delivery and the preparation of the Project Initiation Matrix by the Local Area
Manager will inform the level of staff resource and funding required for this
feasibility stage of the projects. Should staff resource be identified as a key
constraint in delivery of these priorities, alternative options can be presented
to this Committee. Funding for projects is approved via separate reports
usually to this Committee or the Council’s Cabinet. The Wildern Nature
Reserve priority has been identified as one where staff resource may be an
issue. This is dependent on the scale of the land transfer required which is
currently being explored in conjunction with Hedge End Town Council. Once
this has been established, all reasonable options will be considered. If
additional funding is required, this would be presented to this Committee for
consideration in the usual manner.

Risk Assessment
10.

As discussed above, there is the potential for a lack of corporate resource to
impact the delivery of projects, with Wildern Nature Reserve being at greatest
risk. However, the Action Plan does not commit the Committee to a single
delivery route for the project, therefore, should staff resource be a key
constraint, alternative options can be considered including the use of external
contractors if appropriate. The majority of the identified priorities are low risk
due to staff and financial resources already being allocated.

11.

The development and approval of this Plan informs and supports the
allocation of resources to enable focused delivery of projects for the local
area. Delivery of local projects would be adversely affected without the Plan.

Equality and Diversity Implications
12.

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report, however existing
projects have been previously assessed and the new projects are at concept
stage and will be assessed in terms of equality and diversity implications as
Eastleigh Borough Council

11

part of the Council’s Project Management process which will be approved by
the relevant Project Board. It is therefore not considered necessary to carry
out an assessment at this time.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
13.

The Plan supports environmental enhancements through, for example,
delivery of the masterplan project at Itchen Valley Country Park, and the
development of a woodland management and improvement plan at Telegraph
Woods.

14.

The Plan encourages a positive behaviour change for residents through the
provision of enhanced sports facilities and green spaces. Considered
management of woodland and open spaces promotes environmental
resilience and provides educational opportunities to teach people about the
natural environment.

15.

Major development sites meet BREEAM requirements and align to internal
and statutory external regulations to protect and enhance the environment.

Conclusion
16.

This report briefly sets out the process that has informed the development of
the draft HEWEB Local Area Action Plan Priorities 2022/23. The Action Plan
Priorities are therefore presented to the Committee as shown in Appendix
Two for approval.
KITTY BUDDEN
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

15 February 2022
Kitty Budden
023 8068 8418
kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk
2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
List Background Papers:
Eastleigh Borough Council Corporate Plan 2015-2025
HEWEB Community Investment Programme 2019-24
HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2021/22

12

Eastleigh Borough Council

Appendix One
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Action Plan 2021/22 Progress Update
PROJECT/ PRIORITY
Major planning applications – maximise
community benefit
Boorley Park

Boorley Gardens
Woodhouse Lane

St. John’s Phase 1 and Phase 2, Hedge End

Winchester Street
Hatch Farm

Other Projects
Itchen Valley Country Park – masterplan

Former Budgen’s site, Hedge End
Climate Change Initiatives
Telegraph Woods

Land around Wildern Nature Reserve

Public Art Projects
Snowdrop Place

PROGRESS UPDATE (forecasts may change due to
Covid restrictions and supply change impacts)

The play area and MUGA has been completed and
transferred to the Borough Council. In January,
the Council was able to confirm that the
community building and sports pavilion was in an
acceptable condition to commence transfer. The
legal transfer to the Borough Council has
commenced.
Road infrastructure work has commenced.
The installation of the community grass pitches is
drawing to a close with the landscaping being
planted. The construction of the Artificial Turf
Pitch and the extension to the sports hall are
progressing well. The Community Use Agreement
with the Wildern Academy Trust is close to
completion.
Following the resolution of land acquisition issues
with the developer, the installation of the play
area is expected to commence shortly.
The Section 106 legal agreement is being prepared
for engrossment.
Following consultation with residents and young
people, a contractor has been appointed to deliver
the skate park. Delivery should take place in 2022.
Cabinet approval to fund the masterplan works
has been given and an architectural consultant
appointed. Work has commenced on the
preparation of a planning application.
Discussions are ongoing with a potential occupier
for the site.
An investigation has been carried out into the
flooding issue in the site and further work is
required. Progress on this project has been
delayed due to resource limitations and Covid
restrictions.
An internal consultation with relevant Council
teams has been carried out. Discussions are
ongoing with Hedge End Town Council. Asset
transfer process in progress.
Project to be delivered by the developer, awaiting
submission of Public Art Statement.

13

Berry Theatre Entrance
West End Heritage Markers

Hedge End Green Routes

14

Installation of the gates to commence Monday 21st
February 2022.
Fabrication of the markers has completed. Issues
with the location of one marker to be resolved
with HCC/ landowner. Installation anticipated
Spring 2022.
Fabrication of wayfinders completed. Issues with
the location of one wayfinder to be resolved.
Installation anticipated Spring 2022.

Appendix 2
Cllr Cynthia Garton - Local Area Chair

Hedge End,
West End & Botley (HEWEB)

cynthia.garton@eastleigh.gov.uk

Local Area Action Plan
Priorities 2022/23

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s
Ford
Bishopstoke
Horton
Heath

Eastleigh

Fair
Oak

West
End
Hedge
End
Botley

Responsibilities of the
Local Area Committee
▶ Champion the local area
▶ Decide local priorities
▶ Manage local budgets
▶ Determine local levels of council services such
as Streetscene and traffic management
▶ Work with the local community
▶ Decide planning applications

Responsibilities of the
Local Area Manager
▶ Act as a link between the Council and
local people
▶ Support local councillors
▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the
capital programme/major projects
▶ Work with the Council to improve local
services and to ensure value for money
▶ Identify local needs and priorities
▶ Work closely with Town and Parish Councils,
schools and community groups

15

▶ Influence the development of the Council’s
annual strategic plan to recognise the aims of
the Local Areas

Key Projects & Priorities
▶ Current development sites
- continue to maximise and
champion delivery of community
benefits from current sites
including Boorley Park
▶ Itchen Valley Country Park secure improvements through
the delivery of the Masterplan
project
▶ Former Budgens site, Hedge
End - regeneration of site to
enhance and re-invigorate the
Hedge End Town Centre
▶ Telegraph Woods development of project
to manage and enhance
woodland for ecological and
recreational purposes

▶ Neighbourhood Services and
Corporate Communications sponsored roundabouts

Netley
Hamblele-Rice

▶ Land around Wildern Nature
Reserve - management of land
for ecological purposes.
▶ Former Russells Equestrian
Centre land - establish a longterm plan for this valuable open
space for our community.
▶ Local Health Provision engagement with the CCG and
partners to influence provision
of health care services in the
local area.
▶ Speeding - work with partners
to reduce speeding along local
roads.

Council Services - Local Variations
▶ Country Parks, Asset
Management ,Countryside and
Corporate Communications Itchen Valley Country Park

Bursledon

▶ Berrywood Fields - provision of
community sports facilities

▶ Neighbourhood Services and
Customer Care - car parks
at Itchen Valley Country Park,
Hedge End Train Station and
the former Budgens site

Key Partnerships
▶ Hedge End Town Council
▶ West End Parish Council
▶ Botley Parish Council
▶ Hampshire Constabulary
▶ Hampshire County Council
▶ Wildern Academy Trust
▶ HEWEB Community Schools
Network
▶ Ageas Bowl
▶ HEWEB Youth Partnership
▶ HEWEB Business Group
▶ Clinical Commissioning
Groups (CCGs)

Kitty Budden - Local Area Manager • kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk • 023 8068 8418

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
(HEWEB, Hedge End, West End & Botley Local Area Committee, 7th March
2022)
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

X/21/92160
Rachael Morris
24/12/2021
UNIT 3, LANKESTER HOUSE, 1 FREEGROUNDS ROAD,
HEDGE END, SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 0HG
Alison Davanzo
Variation of condition 3 (opening hours) of planning
permission J/17/80081 for prior approval for change of use
for A1 (retail) to A3 (restaurants and cafes)
PERMIT subject to conditions

___________________________________________________________________

CONDITIONS AND REASONS:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance
with the following plans numbered: BLOC 01.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.
2. No deliveries shall be received or dispatched from the site except
between the hours of 10am - 5pm Monday to Saturday and 10am - 4pm
Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.
3. The development hereby permitted shall not be open to customers
except between the hours of 8am - 6pm Monday – Saturday and
8:30am - 4pm Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties.
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 the building shall only be used as a café or
tearoom and not for any other purpose falling within Class A3: Food
and Drink of this order unless a specific grant of planning permission for
such a use has first been obtained.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. The Local Planning Authority is
disposed to grant permission for the proposed use only as in so far as
the site will be used as a café or tearoom, and the Local Planning
Authority wishes to retain control over the use of the site in order that
any future proposals may be considered on their merits.

17

5. There shall be no sales of hot food to take away from the premises to
which this permission relates unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: The Local Planning Authority consider that use of the property
for hot food take away sales would, by virtue of the general levels of
activity, noise and general disturbance associated with such use, harm
the amenity of local residents and the character of the area.

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development
proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and
to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner.

Report:
1. This application has been referred to Committee because a member of the
committee lives in close proximity to the application site.
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
2. The application site forms a ground floor unit used as a café/tearoom. The
area forms part of the secondary shopping area of Hedge End. To the
south are residential dwellings, to the east The Catholic Church of the
Assumption and residential units, and to the north is the primary shopping
area of Hedge End.
Description of Application
3. This application is the variation of condition 3 (opening hours) of planning
permission J/17/80081 for prior approval for change of use for A1 (retail) to
A3 (restaurants and cafes).
4. The application (J/17/80081) concluded that full planning permission was
not required, subject to compliance with conditions, and the use was
changed to an A3 café and tearoom use. In addition, conditions were
attached to restrict the use to a café or tearoom and for no other use within
Class A3 and a further condition restricting the sale of hot food to
takeaway.
5. Condition 3 from J/17/80081 states:
The development hereby permitted shall not be open to customers and
no deliveries shall be received or dispatched from the site except
between the hours of 10am-5pm Monday – Saturday and 10am-4pm

18

Sunday. Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of nearby
properties.
6. As the use of the unit is already a A3 use, this application is only to amend
the condition that restricts opening hours, as above.
7. The current opening hours are 10am - 5pm Monday to Saturday and
10am-4pm on Sunday. This application would like to extend the hours to
open 8am - 6pm Monday to Saturday and 8.30am - 4pm on Sunday.
Therefore, increasing the Monday-Saturday hours by 3 hours per day and
the Sunday hours by 1.5 hours.
Relevant Planning History







Z/27911/001/00 – Change of use to pet shop – Permit - Feb 1985
Z/27911/002/00 - Conversion to offices with external alterations and
associated parking – Permit – Oct 1985
Z/27911/003/00 – Formation of vehicular access to car park – Refuse –
Feb 1986
Z/27911/011/00 - Change of use from retail (A1) to hot food take away
(A5) – Withdrawn – Nov 2002
J/17/80081 – Prior approval for change of use for A1 (retail) to A3
(restaurants and cafes) – Prior approval not required subject to
conditions – Apr 2017
X/19/86760 - Variation of condition 3 of prior notification J/17/80081 to
extend opening hours – Dismissed – Nov 2020 (Refused at LAC - Feb
2020)

Representations Received
8. 3 letters of objection, within the same received document, and 2 letters of
support.
9. The objections include:
 Impact on residential amenity
 Highway matters including parking
 Highway safety
10. The support includes:
 Local amenity
Consultation Responses
11. Hedge End Town Council - Object to the change of proposed hours on the
basis of protecting the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.
Councillors also objected to any change of use to serving hot food.
12. Pollution Control – No Objection
13. Hampshire Highways - No Objection

19

Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site





Within Built-up Area Boundary
Shopping area – secondary zone
Flood Zone 2 and 3
Town, district and local centres (Submitted 2016-2036 Submitted Local
Plan)

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies:






32.ES (Pollution control);
59.BE (Design criteria);
100.T (Transport criteria);
104.T (Off-highway parking);
138.TC (Changes of Use Town and District Centres)

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014
14. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for
examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. While
this has not been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the
determination of this application.
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036
15. The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on
31st October 2018 and the examination hearings concluded in January
2020. The Council received the Inspector’s post-Hearing advice on 1 April
2020. The Council is progressing with modifications to the Local Plan to
enable its adoption, anticipated in late 2022. Given the status of the
Emerging Plan, it is considered that overall considerable weight can be
attributed to it. The most relevant policies are:


Strategic policies:
S1 (Sustainable Development);







Development Management policies:
DM1 (General Development Criteria);
DM8 (Pollution);
DM13 (Transport);
DM14 (Car Parking);
DM22 (Changes of use in retail frontages in Eastleigh town centre,
district centres, local centres and neighbourhood parades)

Supplementary Planning Documents

20

-

None

National Planning Policy Framework
16. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Agent of Change principles protect existing businesses.

National Planning Practice Guidance
17. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
18. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and
Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case). The NPPF and the
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of significant
weight.
Principle:
Economic Sustainability:
19. Section 2 of the NPPF (2021), when discussing economic sustainability, it
states ‘to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by
ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places
and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of
infrastructure’
Assessment:

21

20. Within this application, this is only to assess the opening hours. The
change of use from A1 to A3 was previously considered under J/17/80081
and so it not up for consideration within this application. The original
conditions would be transferred over to this application, with the
amendment of condition 3 only.
21. As explained above in the description section, the establishment would like
to increase hours of opening. This would be to reflect the other surrounding
businesses/offices and local people that commence their days earlier than
the existing 10am start and finish later than the existing close time of 5pm.
Therefore, the hours of 8am - 6pm Monday to Saturday and 8.30am - 4pm
Sunday mirrors this.
22. There was a previous appeal under application X/19/86760
(APP/W1715/W/20/3257049) which was dismissed. This proposed the
following hours:
 10am - 5pm Monday to Wednesday
 10am – 10pm Thursday to Saturday
 10am - 4pm on Sundays or Bank Holidays
Residential amenity
23. Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and
proper account of the context of the site and avoid unduly impacting on
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook,
noise and fumes.
24. There are residential properties located close-by, along Freegrounds Road,
which provides the vehicular access to the site. It is noted that the
extended hours could result in more activity in this area later into the
afternoon. However, this would still only be under the nature of the use as
a café/tearoom. The additional hours would not be considered to result in
noise disturbance that would materially impact on the amenities of these
neighbouring properties.
25. In the previous appeal which proposed opening hours to extend until
10pm, under X/19/86760, the Inspector noted that to introduce a nighttime commercial activity had the potential to significantly impact on the
living conditions of neighbouring residential occupiers. However, these
opening hours proposed in this application would only extend to a time
compatible with the adjacent offices and at a time when the Hedge End
shopping area is still expected to be active and lively, therefore
attracting customers that may also visit the town for other purposes too.
This would accord with a main goal within the Council’s Local Plan
(2001-2011) which states that the Council’s objectives are to sustain
and enhance the vitality and viability of its town, district and local
centres.
26. The existing conditions on the original application controlling hours of
delivery, use and sale of hot food takeaways would be reattached to

22

maintain those controls. Therefore, planning permission would be
required to change the unit into a restaurant use within this use class.
The site would also require planning permission to change the use to a
Sui Generis use (previously known as a A5 take-away use). The
Inspector raised concerns (appeal X/19/86760) regarding delivery
schedules, however a condition would be placed to ensure this is kept to
what is as existing.
27. In the previous appeal (X/19/86760), the Inspector noted that harmful
noise impacts from the tearoom could also arise from the use of the
outdoor customer seating area, which extends along the west side of the
building, and directly faces residential properties. The Inspector said
that all these impacts would potentially occur during a time at night when
the surrounding residential area would be expected to be relatively
quiet. It is worth noting the material difference here in this application as
the hours applied for are still within the working day while the area would
still be busy.
28. In addition, it has been raised that opening the café/tearoom earlier in
the morning, at 8am, could create congestion on Freegrounds Road and
subsequently Freegrounds Avenue when residents are also trying to
leave their homes for the start of their day. However, it is noted that this
would not be too dissimilar from the adjacent offices, also opening at a
similar time. (Leaders opens at 9am Monday-Sat and Richmonds opens
at 8:30am Mon-Thur, 9am on Fri-Sat and 10am on Sundays).
29. The Pollution Control officer has the following comments to make.
Regarding the attraction of patrons and vehicles at the earlier opening
hours, we recognise this might increase average ambient noise levels
slightly but may be more noticeably visually or through perception of other
side effect. We recommend this is a ‘character’ consideration in planning
taken into consideration with other matters. We note the application refers
to local activities; village activity starts from 7am and the hours applied for
are accord with all the neighbouring retails shops, and local schools open
at around 8am. The earlier opening hours could be a key part of this local
life. On the other hand, trade vehicles and lorries for example may be a
concern of neighbours and short-term noise such as arriving, parking and
departing would probably be noticeable. Again, these might not
significantly increase ambient noise levels and so are more a planning
consideration on character and other factors on balance.
30. Condition 5 from the original application, to be transferred to this
application, restricted the take-away of hot food. However, it is reasonable
to expect this café/tearoom would still provide the provision of hot drink
takeaway. This would not create the same odour emissions, air quality
concerns and noise disturbance that food takeaway would create and so is
not unacceptable.
Access, Parking and Transport Matters:

23

31. The prior approval application considered that the A3 use would result in
less trip generation than the previous A1 use that was on the site and
therefore raised no objection to the proposal.
32. It is noted that the existing use does not have any allocated parking for
the site. Following a site visit it is noted that there is informal parking to
the front of the site. It is also noted that there are existing car parks and
bus stops in close proximity to the site. It is therefore considered that
due to the site’s location within Hedge End Town Centre it is well served
by public transport and existing parking with the town centre. It is
considered that the extension of the opening hours would not impact on
the existing parking situation such as to warrant a reason for refusal in
this case.
33. The Inspector noted previously that given the limited amount of street
parking in front of the tea-room, there is a reasonable prospect that
tearoom customers may park on the street along Freegrounds Road in
an attempt to the reduce walking distance to the premises. This has the
potential to cause inconvenience to residents, and conflict between
vehicular and pedestrian use of the road, particularly given the narrow
road width. This is taken on board but in this case where the hours will
not go into the evening, it is considered reasonable that customers could
park in the car parks available within the Hedge End Town Centre,
including that of one situated across the road that offers 2 hours of
parking, due to the fact customers would not be leaving the premises at
a late hour and may feel more comfortable to walk a short distance to
their car.
Drainage and Flood Risk:
34. Although situated in Flood Zone 2 and 3, the increased opening hours
applied for here would not impact this designation.
Other material considerations

Equalities Implications:
35. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:36. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

24

37. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Climate Impact and Sustainability
38. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects
and services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by
2030; (c) ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon
neutrality as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the
urgency of action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every
decision taken by the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and
Environment Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting
Climate and Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
39. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
It is not part of development plan or emerging plan policy, but it is a
material consideration to be considered alongside all other material
considerations. The need to support the economy is part of the Strategic
Environmental Assessment for the Emerging Local Plan, as is an
assessment of climate impacts.
40. The NPPF, Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the local plan, Draft
Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Emerging local plan and energy and
water elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable
Development SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of
resource use, climate change and energy use. When considering the
impact of climate change, the proposed development is not expected to
be directly impacted by the potential effects of climate change and is
expected to have a negligible impact on the climate because of the
development or its use.
Conclusion

41. The proposed variation of condition to extend the opening hours of the
existing café/tearoom is considered to be acceptable. The proposal is not
considered to result in a significantly detrimental impact on the amenities of
the neighbouring properties or existing parking with the surrounding area.
42. Therefore, the recommendation is to Permit, subject to conditions.

25

26

Agenda Item 9

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of Paragraph ? of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972 DELETE SENTENCE IF NOT CONFIDENTIAL

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 7 March 2022
COMMUNITY AND YOUTH GRANTS 2021/2022
Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the
Hedge End, West End and Botley Community Grants Panel

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Committee:
(1)

Approves the grants as set out in Appendix 1 and 2 to the report.

Summary
The Grants Panel recommends that grants be allocated to local organisations operating in
the Hedge End, West End and Botley local area for 2021/2022.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2021 i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of competence,
including power to act for the benefit of it’s area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications
1.

The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to
localism by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. The
recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling
Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an
Excellent Environment, Improving Town and Local Centres, Increasing
Provision and Ensuring a More Diverse Mix of Housing and Enabling the Right
Skills and Employment mix.

Introduction
2.

This committee has allocated £13,710 for a community and youth grant
budget to fund grants to local groups. A total of 23 grant applications were
received with a value of £9395.

27

3.

The Grant Panel consists of Councillors Garton, Gomer, Jurd and Kinloch who
represented the 3 local areas of this local area committee and they met to
assess the applications on 2nd December 2021.

The Panels decisions
4.

The Grants Panel sought to ensure the available funding was spread
throughout the three local wards.

5.

The Panel also considered the objectives of the groups, the numbers
attending, whether they were from the Local Area, the total cost of the project
and whether funding was or could be sought from elsewhere. The applications
were assessed against the following criteria: Including business plans, details
on how the grant application meets Eastleigh Borough Council’s priorities
(Healthy Communities, Green Borough and Prosperous Place) and
confirmation that the applications were not for day to day running costs.

6.

It is recommended that grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 and 2
to this report.

Financial Implications
7.

The total grants awarded in this report amounts to £7255 and can be
accommodated within the approved budget of £13,710.

8.

The remaining funds which were not allocated in this round of grants have
been ringfenced. In light of the substantial grant funding remaining, Hedge
End Town Council and West End and Botley Parish Councils will be given the
opportunity to bid for funds towards youth outreach work in their area. A
further report will be presented to this committee to approve this funding.

Risk Assessment
9.

The recommendations made by the Grants Panel do not hold significant risks.
All grant applications are subject to the completion of a detailed application
and supporting documents, including the submission of financial details. A
monitoring form will also be sent out to all successful recipients to ensure the
funds have been spent in line with the approved grant within 12 months of the
award.

Equality and Diversity Implications
10.

28

The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and
community sectors are treated fairly and equitably. The Council has had due
regard to the aims of the Equality Act. The recommendations in this report
promote equality of opportunity, in particular for children and young people,
children and youth people with disabilities and disabled people (including
mental health) and older people. As part of the application process, applicants
are required to submit an Equal Opportunities statement.

Eastleigh Borough Council

11.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
The community grants encourage changes residents’ behaviours by
supporting projects which incorporate green initiatives. For example, the
Botley in Bloom competition encourages all local residents to enter the
gardening event which brings the community together, raises awareness of
the environment and helps connects people to the benefits of nature and
gardening. The d@rt Centre at Wildern School are constructing a well-being
garden as a direct request from the pupils which will not only have mental
health benefits, but will also be an exciting opportunity for young people to
learn about nature and the many benefits of being outdoors.

Conclusion
12.

The recommendations made in this report complement the Council’s
corporate priorities, as well as this Committee’s local priorities. Subject to the
approval of this Committee, the grants will be awarded at a presentation
evening in June 2022 to recognise and celebrate the extent of community
work being undertaken in the local area.
SIOBHAN STRAND
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

23 December 2021
Siobhan Strand
02380 688428
siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk
2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
23 grant applications were received and are held on file for further inspection.

Eastleigh Borough Council

29

This page is intentionally left blank

Organisation Name

How will grant be spent

Amount applied for

Amount Recommended

Grant conditions/notes

C
a
s
e
O
w
n
e
r
Hampshire Spirit Horse Rescue

We are looking to build field shelters for the horses paddocks, these are relatively
expensive for good quality lasting shelters and all our current fundraising is
covering very large vet bills.

£500.00

£500.00

Botley in Bloom

Winners ceramic plaques, engraving and new shields as necessary, hire of hall for
presentation, printing and stationery for entry forms, invitations and certificates.

£200.00

£200.00 Subject to including Boorley Green area in the garden
competition and adding EBC logo on certificates.

Age Concern Eastleigh

We need help to relaunch our services after the pandemic forced us to stop faceto-face service delivery, and because squatters moved into our closed premises,
we need to replace equipment and resources that were damaged or stolen. We
need to replace our office computer which was destroyed. A grant of £500 will
enable us to purchase an office computer to ensure that we maintain consistent
support to the older population of Hedge End, West End and Botley.

£500.00

Hedge End Breathe Easy and Friday fitness
Group

We would like to introduce Tai chi monthly to the group, as it is excellent for
maintaining good balance and helping prevent falls £300 would pay for 6 monthly
sessions and we would use subs and fundraising for the rest

£300.00

£150.00 To help with promotion for the set up of new class.

Wildern Leisure Centre

£599.95 Mirafit Kettleball set £405 Mirafit Soft stackable plyo box in assorted
heights

£500.00

£500.00

£0.00 As this service benefits all residents across the borough, it was
felt that this application should be submitted for the Borough
Wide grants instead.

31

32
Multi Sports Club

Purchase of a projector and screen to enable us to include isolating club members
in our activities via zoom, to use for social events like bingo and quizzes, to hold
film nights.

£350.00

£350.00

The d.@rt Centre, Wildern School

Tutor costs 2 hrs @ £25/ hr = £50 per course across 3 courses x 3 months = £450
Advertising £50

£500.00

£500.00

music fun factory

£30 per piece of music nine for each group ( eight groups in all ) but I save money
by doing alot of arranging

£150.00

£100.00

The d.@rt Centre, Wildern School

Tutor costs for 2 weeks= £100 Equipment- 10 hand electric beaters @ £17.49 Each
= £174.90

£275.00

£275.00

The d.@rt Centre, Wildern School

250 hearing loop for a large hall

£250.00

£0.00 Application has been withdrawn as easier solution has been
found (subtitles), so no need for hearing loop now.

Botley Floral Club

This cost will cover the fee charged by the qualified teacher plus travelling costs
and materials needed for the session.

£200.00

£0.00 Does not meet grant criteria, i.e. running costs and the club's
account appears to have over £1000 unallocated to cover the
costs of the demostration.

West End Local History Society

We have a very elderly donated computer in museum, and feel that now there is
WiFi availability on site, we could offer more help and assistance with visitors
queries.

£450.00

£450.00

Citizens Advice Eastleigh

We are moving to cloud computing (Google Workspace) to make best use of our
financial resources, and ensure that we are all linked, no matter where we are
working from. Due to financial constraints, our volunteers have been using their
own IT equipment to volunteer helping the public at home. We are seeking
funding to ensure that all of our team have Chromebooks owned by us, so that we
can maintain them at no cost to the volunteers, link up our systems to maximise
our effectiveness and troubleshoot from afar. Having a machine owned by us
provided to them would ensure that our volunteers feel supported in their role,
would make volunteering easier, and ensure that we can make a smooth
transition to the cloud.

£490.00

£4,665.00

£0.00 As this service benefits all residents across the borough, it was
felt that this application should be submitted for the Borough
Wide grants instead.

£3,025.00

33

This page is intentionally left blank

Organisation Name

Hunters Explorer Scout Unit

23rd Itchen North Scout Group

Hedge End Town Council

13th Itchen North Scout Group

The d.@rt Centre, Wildern School
The d.@rt Centre, Wildern School
31st Itchen North (Amazon) Sea Scouts

How will grant be spent

Amount applied for

Amount Recommended

We want to provide a mess tent and dining shelter for the young people to use on
camping and residential weekends, this will provide an area for cooking, eating
and a communal are within our camp sites.
The grant will be spent on equipment for our new squirrels section, we are the
only scout group in the area, and district offering squirrels and there is a lot of
equipment we need to get it off the ground.
02/12 - cooking equipment and tents
£250 for games console- either Nintendo Switch or X Box Series 5 £100 for extra
controllers £150 for games which can be played together like Just Dance, singing,
sports This equipment will be used during FNP and Junior Youth Club sessions
especially when weather is bad and we are all inside. We operate from The Hub
which is part of Wildern School and all session equipment has to be taken out and
packed away each time so we have limited resources due to storage etc. We
currently have a Wii and very old X box and Playstation so would like some up to
date gaming equipment. This is constantly requested by the young people.

£500.00

£500.00

£400.00

£400.00

£500.00

£500.00

The Group needs to replace its two event shelters - used for protection from
sun/rain for a number of events throughout the year including day events and
camps.
Holiday Activities : £30 per week x 8 weeks =£240 Junior designers and junior art
club 24 sessions per year x £10 per session = £240 Total £480
4 Wooden planters and a contribution towards a water feature
The grant will go towards the purchase of a new 3.6 metre Newmatic safety boat,
including 15hp outboard engine and launching trolley/road trailer. The new boat
would replace an existing boat that is over 30 years old. The boat is used for
supervising paddling and sailing activities in areas of the River Hamble where the
water depth is low, and for teaching older young people power boat handling
skills.

£350.00

£350.00

£480.00

£480.00

£500.00
£500.00

£500.00
£500.00

Grant conditions/notes

35

36
1st Hedge End Guides

We are requesting a grant to help towards the costs of buying equipment that will
used many times in the unit over many years in order for us to deliver the recently
changed programme whilst teaching the Guides new skills and developing them to
higher levels. These skills will gain them badges which will lead to their attainment
of their Bronze, Silver and Gold awards as well as giving them lasting skills for life.
The equipment we are looking to purchase is to support the Have Adventures
theme designed to give the girls the chance to overcome fears, try new activities
and learn survival skills. Getting outside and having adventures has always been an
important part of guiding. To deliver this part of the programme safely we need to
purchase a variety of kitchen and bushcraft/survival (mora) knives, cut resistant
gloves, drills and drill bits, pyrography irons and heat resistant gloves and glass
engraving kits. The leaders have already undergone training and have many years
experience in the use of these tools to be able to safely deliver sessions to the
Guides. We normally fundraise throughout the year with various events but with
so many events having to be cancelled in 2020 and 2021 we have found ourselves
80%, around £3000 each year, down on our fundraising for these years which
strongly limits our ability to buy resources and deliver a balanced and varied
programme.

£500.00

£500.00

We would like to facilitate monthly activities that are hosted by organisations
within the community to allow the children to engage in structured activities
within a safe environment. The aim of these activities is to help the children try
new things which potentially will lead to wider engagement within the
community.
Wellstead, St. James, Botley Primary Schools The money would be used ..... Resources including toys, books, motivational
resources, stickers, reward charts. Every parent will be given a handbook which
costs £13, plus other resources including self-care resources, reward charts,
games, etc. We will need to provide weekly refreshments like coffee, tea and
biscuits (approximately £10 per week). Resources including flip chart pads, pens,
A1 visual boards to communicate program content.

£500.00

£500.00 Subject to details on sessions.

£500.00

£500.00

Berrywood School

£500.00 On hold pending further
info

Wildern Opportunity Group

Our aim is to raise money for the school to pay for items that the school budget
does not allow for. In this particular instance, we are very keen to help fund some
of the equipment to facilitate activities in the new creative arts centre. These
would involve art, music, drama and cooking. We are keen for the school to have
high quality resources for both the children and community to use.

£5,230.00

£4,230.00

